
Our Ref:   50878 
Contact Officer:   Megan Cunningham 
Contact Phone:   (03) 9290 1856  

3 June 2013  

Mr David Farmer 
General Manager 
Wollongong City Council 
Locked Bag 8821 
Wollongong NSW 2500 

By email: council@wollongong.nsw.gov.au  

Dear Mr Farmer  

Wollongong City Council and Shellharbour City Council application for 
authorisation - A91361 - Information request 

I refer to the application for authorisation lodged with the Australian Competition and 
Consumer Commission (the ACCC) by Wollongong City Council and Shellharbour City 
Council (the Councils) on 8 March 2013. 

The ACCC is seeking clarification over some aspects of the application and proposed 
conduct.  The ACCC would appreciate you addressing the following issues: 

1) Please provide an update regarding any progress the Councils have made in 
the tendering processes for the waste collection and recycling processing 
services.  

2) Please provide the following information regarding the materials recovery 
facility (MRF): 

a) If the existing MRF operator does not lodge a successful tender for a future 
contract with the Councils, is it likely that the existing MRF will become 
redundant after the current contracts with the Councils expire or are there 
any other customers the existing MRF may service?  

b) Could the existing MRF be used to service councils in other regions? 
Would the economics of such a service be viable? 

c) What proportion of recycling material generated in the Wollongong and 
Shellharbour region is currently represented by the Councils’ tender for 
collection and recycling services? To what extent is the amount of material 
for recycling in the region likely to grow over time? 

d) How long was the initial contract term for recycling processing services with 
the incumbent, Remondis / Par Recycling? 

e) What capacity do the Councils envisage may be built at the new MRF? 
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f) Where is the nearest MRF other than the existing MRF at Kembla Grange? 
To the best of the Councils’ knowledge, would this MRF compete for any 
similar customers to the existing MRF? Please explain why or why not 
(including reference to any spare capacity it may have, and whether 
transfer stations that may be required). 

3) Please provide the following information regarding the waste collection 
services: 

a) What is the average lifespan of collection vehicles?  

b) What is the expected remaining life of the existing fleet of collection 
vehicles?  

c) If the incumbent, Remondis, is unsuccessful in the current tender process: 

i) Could these vehicles be used to provide other services to customers 
locally?  

ii) Is it possible for the vehicles to be modified for purposes other than 
waste collection?  

iii) Is it likely that the vehicles would be sold to operators in other 
locations? 

The ACCC would appreciate a response regarding these issues by cob Tuesday 11 
June 2013. The ACCC recognises that parts of the response to this request may be 
commercially sensitive and will consider any requests by the councils to exclude parts 
of the response from the public register in accordance with its Guidelines for excluding 
information from the public register (attached). 

A copy of this letter has been placed on the ACCC’s public register. 

If you wish to discuss any aspect of this matter, please do not hesitate to contact 
Megan Cunningham on (03) 9290 1856.   

Yours sincerely 

 
Richard Chadwick 
General Manager 
Adjudication Branch 
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